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The Linden Methodist Church is a small, 40 x 50 foot structure centrally located within 
the business district of the rural community of Linden. It is constructed of roughly- 
surfaced quarried limestone blocks with smooth stone lintels, sills, quoins, and 
voussoirs. Each side of the gabled-roof building has four rectangular windows, fur­ 
nished with stained glass at a later date. Four of the east and west windows have 
been dedicated to the memory of early pioneers of the area, and another to a prominent 
couple, Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Hicks. The remaining windows are not dedicated.

The main facade features two round-arched lancet windows decorated with a "bullseye" 
and an English "bee-skep." These windows flank a central doorway which is sheltered 
by a semicircular hood built prior to 1930. A small half-circular inset in the gable 
reads "M. E, Church, 1851." To the south is a one-story, frame gable-roofed vestry 
built before 1894 which serves as a meeting room.

A frame Victorian steeple was added ca. 1877-1878. Each side features two round-arched 
louvered lancets surmounted by a clock face inset among decorative shingles. Corner 
brackets embellished with pendants support the bell-cast roof which is finished off 
by a wooden finial and a weather.vane. Funds solicited from the community enabled the 
purchase of a town clock and a church bell for the belfry. The clock is an 1875 Seth 
Thomas weight clock and has tolled on the hour with few interruptions since its instal­ 
lation in 1882.

Stepping inside the church, one enters a small vestibule added sometime after 1900 
from which the worshipper may enter the hall through swin^ng doors. The main feature 
of the hall is a three-sided gallery designed ca. 1870 by Thomas Blake, ,a carpenter 
who, according to local tradition, had had previous experience in church and gallery 
building in London, England. 1 Two long staircases along the east and west walls give 
access to the gallery, which is constructed of panelled and hand-grained pine with wal­ 
nut trim and is supported by fluted Doric columns. An antique pedal organ is 
stationed on a platform in the gallery. The pews in the gallery are the original boxes 
with hinged doors; the box pews in the hall have been replaced by curved rows of seats.

The original pulpit rostrum extended the width of the church. Probably when the 
gallery was added, it was raised and shortened. The original altar rail remains as 
does one oak lamp stand.

The church is in good condition but parts of the floor need repair and leakage around 
the steeple will necessitate a new roof soon.

Church Messenger, Marceline, Missouri: Walsworth Brothers, 1951,
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The major landmark in the tiny old community of Linden, the Linden Methodist Church 
is a representation of the building techniques, religion and culture of the early 
Cornish settlers in southwestern Wisconsin,

Architecture; The Linden Methodist Church was constructed in 1851 by skilled Cornish 
masons of the native quarried limestone used for many Cornish structures in Iowa County. 

"Bo small, one-story cottages are the only other stone buildings remaining in Linden itself. 
The simple gable-roofed design was echoed by many early churches in the area, popular­ 
ly called "rock diurches," but unfortunately few survive. The Rock Lutheran Church 
in the nearby Town of Dodgeville is a small rubble structure; tiny St. Paul's Mission 
Church is an early vernacular rubble building of 1842, long-since outgrown; and St. 
Joseph's Roman Catholic Church in Avoca is quite similar to Linden Methodist but was 
built much later by Norwegians in 1868-1869. Two others are of a later Gothic Revival 
style with pointed-arch windows and steeply-pitched roofs.

Linden Methodist Church duplicated the exterior design of the Primitive Methodist Church 
which was built at the same time by Cornish settlers in Mineral Point (this church was 
demolished in the nineteenth century).

The interior configuration echoes the arrangement of John Wesley's church in City Road, 
London, an arrangement which became the model for many early churches of the faith. 
Both churches have a gallery supported on Doric columns, box seats, a raised rostrum, 
a vestry for classes, meetings, etc.,and both are of the austere Classical Styling of 
the Calvinistic faiths. Later in the 19th century, Methodist churches in Wisconsin 
became more traditionally Gothic inspired.

History; The Linden Methodist Church is without a doubt one of the oldest Methodist 
church structures in continuous service in the State of Wisconsin. The first permanent 
settlements in Wisconsin occurred in the 1820's in the southwest when lead was 
discovered. Commercial diggings began in Linden, then known as Peddler's Creek, in 
1828. From 1834-1850 many Cornish immigrants settled in Linden. Although Mineral 
Point and Dodgeville are recognized as centers of Cornish settlement in the state, the 
smaller community of Linden had a stronger concentration of Cornishmen,^ Although 
the Cornish surnames are less prevalent in the area now, residents are quick to point 
out that the majority of families have at least one Cornish ancestor.

The Methodist Episcopal Church was organized in 1834. In 1836 the congregation built 
a small log church, subsequently used as a schoolhouse. Four years later they built 
a rock church, but this building was also soon converted into a school when the congre­ 
gation outgrew it in 1851. Now all that remains of the old church site is an iron fence
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around an overgrown cemetery• Historically, Linden has been a strongiioLd of Methodism, 
The Cornish miners who settled in Linden brought with them from Cornwall a strongly 
Calvinistic and conservative form of Methodism. The only other church in town was 
a Primitive Methodist church, now vacant. Churches of this denomination were usually 
formed by more conservative Methodists in reaction to the trends in the M. E. Church 
in Wisconsin towards a looser interpretation of Calvinist predestination, piety and 
church polity.

The once prosperous mining community has declined over the years with the mines being 
worked out, a drop in the lead market, and the high cost of operations. The declining 
mining industry precipitated a decline in population and church membership. Records 
indicate a village population in 1970 of 408 (the population in 1850 was 950), church 
membership of 80 and school population of about 100. Current efforts to close the 
village school and small post offices, if they succeed, will affect the survival of 
Linden, The Linden Community Historical Society, with the approval of the Linden 
Methodist Administrative Board, wishes to nominate this building to the register to 
add a measure of protection in the coming years of uncertainty.

Plaque inset in gable-end of church and The Church Messenger, Marceline, 
Missouri: Walsworth Brothers, 1951.n *

^The Church Messenger.
3Rev, W. H, Daniels, A.M., The Illustrated History of Methodism, New York: 

Methodist Book Concern, 1879, pp, 305-308.
^Wisconsin Historical Collections.
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